
 

Meeting Date: March 13, 2017 

Members Present: Councilor Abbott 
Councilor Barnett 
Councilor Bogan 
Councilor Lauterborn 
Deputy Mayor Varney 

Members Absent: None 

Guests/Staff: Julian Long, Community Development Coordinator 
Jennifer Marsh, Economic Development Specialist 
Todd Marsh, Welfare Director 
Kathy Crompton, Community Action Partnership of Strafford County 
Susan Ford, My Friend's Place 
Pamela Thyng, Community Partners 
Richard Wagner, AIDS Response Seacoast 
Jenny Sheehan, Court-Appointed Special Advocates of New Hampshire 
Kerry Norton, Hope on Haven Hill 
Joe Hannon, Hope on Haven Hill 
Tracey Donaldson, Dover Adult Learning Center 
Isles Maskell, Dover Adult Learning Center 
Julie Reynolds, Cornerstone VNA 
Donald Capoldo, The Homemakers Health Services 
Doug Currier, YMCA of Strafford County 
Sally Struble, Homeless Center for Strafford County 
Ryann Jabre, Homeless Center for Strafford County 
Martha Jo Hewitt, Tri-City Co-op 
Robin Brown, Maple St. Magnet School 
Lauren Krans, Rochester Recreation 
Martha Stone, Cross Roads House 
Allie Joseph, MY TURN 
Rad Nichols, COAST 

 

Councilor Lauterborn called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. Motion was made by Councilor Bogan and 

seconded by Councilor Barnett to approve the January 9, 2017 minutes. The minutes were approved 

unanimously. 

PUBLIC INPUT There was no public input. 

CDBG PRIOR YEAR FUNDS – Ms. Marsh explained that there are several businesses interested in 



JOB Loan Program applying for Job Opportunity Benefit (JOB) loans but, due to a 

$100,000 loan to Trigger Devils, the JOB Loan Revolving Fund is now 

below $100,000. Therefore, the Economic Development Office has 

requested that $25,374.77 in prior year unexpended CDBG funds be 

allocated to the JOB Loan Program revolving loan fund. 

Motion was made by Councilor Varney and seconded by Councilor 

Bogan to recommend that the $25,374.77 in unexpended prior year 

CDBG funds be allocated to the JOB Loan Program revolving loan 

fund. The motion passed unanimously. 

FY 17-18 GRANT 
APPLICATION 
PRESENTATIONS 

Ms. Crompton presented for the Community Action Partnership of 
Strafford County (CAP). CAP has applied for general city funding and 
for CDBG funding for its weatherization program. Ms. Crompton 
stated that CAP has served 3,900 residents in the current fiscal year. 
Councilor Varney asked whether CAP has spent most of its CDBG 
weatherization grant this year, and Ms. Crompton replied that almost 
the entire grant has been expended and that CAP is on track to meet 
its goals for the year. 
 
Ms. Ford presented for My Friend's Place, which is requesting CDBG 
funds to support its homeless shelter services. Ms. Ford stated that 
My Friend's Place's services save the City's welfare department about 
$40,000 a year, as without these services the welfare department 
would have to place people in motels. Councilor Lauterborn 
mentioned that the HUD proposed budget calls for elimination of all 
CDBG funding. Mr. Long added that the proposal also calls for the 
eliminated CDBG funds to be replaced with non-HUD funds from an 
as yet unidentified source. Ms. Ford stated that the region's needs for 
homeless services have been going up, not down, and that all of the 
region's shelters have been running over capacity. 
 
Ms. Thyng presented for Community Partners, which is requesting 
CDBG funds to support its rental assistance program for people with 
disabilities and mental illnesses. Ms. Thyng mentioned that the 
average monthly disability benefit is barely over the poverty line. (The 
handout from Community Partners is attached to the meeting 
minutes.) 
 
Richard Wagner presented for AIDS Response Seacoast, which is 
requesting CDBG funds to support its case management services, 
including rental assistance. Mr. Wagner stated that twenty percent of 
AIDS Response Seacoast's clients are from Rochester, the largest 
group by city/town. He also stated that one hundred percent of 
Rochester clients are extremely low income. 
 
Ms. Sheehan presented for Court Appointed Special Advocates of 
New Hampshire (CASA), which is requesting CDBG funds to support 



its guardian ad litem services for abused and neglected children. Ms. 
Sheehan explained that, if CASA is not able to provide volunteers, 
private guardians ad litem must be hired for $60 per hour. 
 
Ms. Norton and Mr. Hannon presented for Hope on Haven Hill, which 
is requesting CDBG funds for a second full-time case manager to 
provide services to pregnant women and new mothers with 
substance use disorders. Ms. Norton stated that Hope on Haven Hill 
also provides case management services to non-resident clients and 
that case management reduces hospitalizations. Mr. Hannon spoke 
on the importance of follow-up and reintegration into the community 
for substance abuse recovery. Councilor Lauterborn asked whether 
there were state or federal funding sources available for case 
management services, and Mr. Hannon replied that the state is still 
deciding on what services state substance abuse recovery funding can 
be used. 
 
Ms. Donaldson presented for Dover Adult Learning Center (DALC), 
which is requesting CDBG funding for its high school equivalency 
testing program. Ms. Donaldson stated that in addition to preparing 
students to take the HiSET, DALC also assists students in finding 
suitable employment. Mr. Maskell, a current DALC student, shared 
that DALC's staff has made it possible for him to complete his high 
school equivalency and prepare to go to school to become a plumber. 
 
Ms. Reynolds presented for Cornerstone VNA, which is requesting 
general city funds for its medical and home care services. Ms. 
Reynolds stated that Cornerstone VNA provides home care, 
telehealth programs, hospice and palliative care, and perinatal care. 
She also mentioned that the organization is seeing decreased funding 
from Medicare and a regional nursing shortage. (The handout from 
Cornerstone VNA is attached to the meeting minutes.) 
 
Mr. Capoldo presented for the Homemakers Health Services, which is 
requesting general city funds for its medical and home care services. 
Mr. Capoldo stated that in the current year the Homemakers has 
served 201 Rochester clients, seventy-two percent of whom are low 
income. (The handout from the Homemakers is attached to the 
meeting minutes.) 
 
Mr. Currier presented for the YMCA of Strafford County, which is 
requesting CDBG funds to fund summer camp scholarships for 
homeless youth. Mr. Currier stated that the YMCA provided eleven 
scholarships last year and hopes to provide 50 for the upcoming year. 
Councilor Lauterborn asked how the YMCA determines whether a 
potential camper is homeless, and Mr. Currier stated that the YMCA 
coordinates with multiple social services agencies and the Rochester 
School Department. 



 
Ms. Struble presented for the Homeless Center for Strafford County, 
which is requesting CDBG funds for its homeless shelter services.  Ms. 
Struble stated that the shelter plans to expand its operational months 
to cover the entire school year and, eventually, be open year-round. 
The shelter also will be exploring a capital campaign to relocate 
nearer to the city's downtown. Ms. Jabre, a current resident of the 
shelter, spoke on how the shelter has provided her and her family of 
six with shelter and assistance in obtaining benefits and employment. 
(The letter read by Ms. Jabre is attached to the meeting minutes.) 
 
Ms. Hewitt presented for Tri-City Co-op, which is requesting CDBG 

funds to build a music room within their building to serve clients with 

mental illnesses. Ms. Hewitt stated that the organization has a total 

membership of 300 persons, many of whom are Rochester residents. 

Ms. Brown presented for Maple St. Magnet School, which is 

requesting CDBG funding to build an outdoor classroom. Ms. Brown 

stated that the school is located in an underresourced neighborhood 

and the outdoor classroom would be open for the entire 

neighborhood. Councilor Lauterborn asked if the school is located 

within an eligible low-moderate income census tract, and Mr. Long 

confirmed that it is. Councilor Bogan asked whether the project could 

be covered by parental volunteers or PTA funding. Ms. Brown replied 

that the school has a lot of parental involvement but is too small to 

cover a project of this size. Councilor Varney asked whether the 

project has only been submitted for CDBG consideration or also is 

included in the School Department's CIP budget. Ms. Brown said it is 

not in the CIP budget. 

Ms. Krans presented for the Rochester Recreation Department, which 

is requesting CDBG funding to install lights at the tennis courts 

located at the Community Center. Ms. Krans stated that several 

community members have suggested this project over the years. 

Councilor Bogan asked if CDBG funds could be combined with other 

funds for the project, and Mr. Long said that they can. Councilor 

Bogan asked whether the project could occur in stages with just a few 

courts completed at a time. Ms. Krans said it is possible, but the main 

cost is electricity set-up, which has to occur in one single step. 

Councilor Varney suggested that the Recreation Department look into 

bonding the project. 

Ms. Stone presented for Cross Roads House, which is requesting 

CDBG funds to provide homeless shelter services. Ms. Stone stated 

that Cross Roads House served 555 people last year, 78 of them from 

Rochester. Ms. Stone also stated that Cross Roads House is the 



largest of the region's shelters and is operating at thirty percent over 

capacity. 

Ms Price presented for the Rochester Housing Authority, which is 

requesting CDBG funding to install solar panels on a building housing 

elderly residents. Ms. Price explained that the building has high utility 

costs. The project would install 100 solar panels, with anticipated 

costs savings of $6,200 per year. Councilor Abbott asked whether the 

costs are for individual units, and Ms. Price replied that this covers 

the common spaces as individual units' utilities are paid for by the 

residents. 

Ms. Joseph presented for MY TURN, which is requesting CDBG 

funding for its vocational services for low-income youth. Ms. Joseph 

stated that the funding would cover tuition assistance and mentioned 

that several MY TURN clients have been placed in paid internships 

with local restaurants. 

Mr. Nichols presented for the Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast 

Transportation (COAST), which is requesting general city funds for 

public transportation services. Mr. Long stated, in the interests of 

transparency and in compliance with the CDBG conflicts of interest 

policy, that he has been appointed as an alternate member of the 

COAST board of directors, representing the City of Rochester. Mr. 

Nichols mentioned that there had been a fifty-six percent increase in 

Rochester boardings. Councilor Varney asked if any new bus shelters 

are planned, such as at Granite State Business Park, and Mr. Nichols 

said a few more shelters are under consideration. 

DRAFT FY 17-18 CDBG 
ANNUAL ACTION PLAN 

Councilor Lauterborn and Councilor Varney requested that the grant 
application summaries be revised to reflect current-year request, FY 
2016-2017 award, and FY 2015-2016 award before they are 
submitted for inclusion in the City Council agenda packet. Mr. Long 
stated that he would do so.  
 
Mr. Marsh stated that all of the grant applications are worthy 
projects. He emphasized the importance of the homeless shelters' 
work, however, for the city generally and for the welfare department 
specifically. Mr. Marsh explained about how the welfare office and 
the shelters interact and coordinate services. 
 
Councilor Lauterborn suggested that, for the FY 2018-2019 grant 
cycle, the timeline be moved up a month to avoid issues if there are 
meeting cancellations due to winter snow storms. Mr. Long stated he 
would attempt to rearrange the timeline this way. 
 
The Committee decided to recommend general city funding in the 



following amounts: 
 
Rochester Main Street: $35,000, out of the Economic Development 
Office's budget 
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County: $9,000 
Cornerstone VNA: $28,826 
The Homemakers: $11,272 
COAST: $118,527 
 
The Committee decided to recommend CDBG funding in the following 
amounts: 
 
Homeless Center for Strafford County: $8,000 
MY TURN: $4,541.90 
SHARE Fund: $4,000 
Dover Adult Learning Center: $4,000 
My Friend's Place: $5,000 
Cross Roads House: $5,000 
Court Appointed Special Advocates of New Hampshire: $2,000 
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County: $50,000 
Rochester Recreation Department – Tennis Court Lights: $91,014.90 
 
Councilor Varney commented that, as CDBG funding decreases, 
alternate funding sources for the homeless shelters will need to be 
identified. Councilor Bogan and Councilor Barnett concurred. 
 
Motion was made by Councilor Varney and seconded by Councilor 
Bogan to approve the above general city funding recommendations, 
to be submitted to the City Council for its review and approval, and 
to approve the above CDBG funding recommendations as part of the 
draft FY 2017-2018 CDBG Annual Action Plan, to be submitted to the 
City Council for its review and approval. The motion passed 
unanimously. 

WORKFORCE HOUSING 
CHARRETTE 

Councilor Lauterborn asked whether a specific project has to be 
already selected in order to do the charrette. Councilor Bogan stated 
that she believes the Workforce Housing Coalition will assist a host 
community in identifying potential project sites. Councilor Abbott 
shared his conversation with colleagues in Barrington, who have 
recently done a workforce housing charrette. 
 
Councilor Lauterborn suggested that the possibility of a workforce 
housing charrette be placed on a fall 2017 meeting agenda for further 
discussion, as the Workforce Housing Coalition is already selecting 
communities from the applications it has received. Mr. Long stated he 
would do so. 

PROJECTS PROGRAM 
REPORT 

Mr. Long gave a brief update on the CDBG program, including the 
status of the Tri-City Co-op HVAC project, the Homeless Center for 
Strafford County's generator project, and the swearing in of Dr. Ben 



Carson as new HUD secretary. Mr. Long also gave a brief overview of 
recent non-CDBG grant work, including the award of a Certified Local 
Government grant for the development of historic district design 
guidelines, submission of a HUD lead remediation program grant 
application, and submission of an EPA brownfields grant application 
to remediate contamination at the former Advanced Recycling site. 

OTHER BUSINESS There was no other business. 

 

Motion to adjourn was made by Councilor Bogan and seconded by Councilor Abbott. The vote to 

adjourn was unanimous. The meeting was adjourned at 9:45 p.m. 

Next Meeting – Monday, April 10th, 2017 at 7 p.m. in the City Council Conference Room at City Hall 

Topics – CDBG Projects Program Report 

 














